INDORAMA VENTURES YARNS PRIVATE LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23




INDO RAMA
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 2" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Indorama
Ventures Yarns Private Limited will be held on Thursday, the 13" day of July 2023, at 11:15 AM
IST, through Video Conferencing (‘VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (‘OAVM”), deemed to be the
Registered Office of the Company situated at The Metropolitan, 6" Floor, Bandra Kurla

Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051, Maharashtra, India, to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Adoption of the Financial Statements.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the

financial year ended 31% March 2023, together with the reports of the Board of Directors
and the Statutory Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. M. N. Sudhindra Rao, (DIN: 01820347), who
retires by rotation at this meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider the appointment of Mr. Saurabh Mishra, (DIN: 10153793), as a Director of
the Company and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Saurabh Mishra, (DIN: 10153793), who was appointed as an
Additional Director on the Board of the Company pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and who holds office up
to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the
Company liable to retire by rotation.”

4. To consider and approve for entering into Related Party(s) Transactions for the
financial year 2023-24 and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) read with the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), consent of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contracts
arrangements, transactions, whether by way of any individual transactions or transactions
taken together or series of transactions or otherwise with Indorama Ventures Public
Company Limited (“IVL”), Thailand, a related party, on such terms and conditions as may be
agreed between the Company and Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited (“IVL"),
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Thailand, from time to time, for commission on SBLC value not exceeding $ 25 Million, for
an aggregate maximum amount not exceeding ¥2.00 Crores (Indian Rupees Two Crores
only), to be entered during the financial year 2023-24, provided that such contacts,

arrangements, transactions shall always be carried out at arm’s length and in the ordinary
course of business of the Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters, and things and execute all such deeds, documents, and writings, on an

ongoing basis, as may be necessary, proper, or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to
the above resolution.”

By Order of the Board

U y

Place: Gurugram Umesh Kumar Agrawal
Date: May 12, 2023 Director (DIN: 08502514)
NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (“MCA") has vide its circular dated
December 28, 2022, read with Circulars dated January 13, 2021, May 5, 2020, April 13,
2020 and April 8, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of
the Annual General Meeting( “AGM” or “Meeting”) through Video Conferencing/Other Audio
Visual Means(“VC/OAVM”"), on or before September 30, 2023, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue.

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’) and MCA Circular, the
AGM of the Company will be held through VC/OVAM. Hence, Members can attend and

participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only. The Registered Office of the Company shall
be deemed as the venue of the AGM.

2. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for

the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act").

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitied to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars
through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.

Accordingly, the facility for the appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the AGM. Hence, the Proxy Form is not annexed to this Notice.

4. The relative Explanatory Statements, pursuant to Section 102 of the Act, in respect of ltem
Nos. 03 and 04 of the accompanying Notice are annexed hereto.
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5. A statement giving the relevant details of the directors seeking appointment/re-appointment

under Item Nos. 02 and 03 of the accompanying Notice, as required by Secretarial
Standard-2 is annexed herewith.

6. The helpline E-mail ID regarding any query/for assistance in participation in AGM through
VC is: info@ivyarn.com.

7. In the case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order

of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the
AGM.

8. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map, proxy form, and attendance
slips are not annexed in this notice.

9. The facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall open 30 minutes before the time
scheduled for the AGM.

10. Unless a poll is demanded, the resolution will be passed by a show of hands.

11. For the poll, the members have to send an email from their registered email address to the
following designated email address: info@ivyarn.com.

12. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the
Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available
electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in
the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the members
from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e., July 13, 2023.
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to info@ivyarn.com.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

ITEM NO. 03

Mr. Saurabh Mishra (DIN: 10153793) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
with effect from May 12, 2023, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Saurabh Mishra
holds office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board feels that the

presence of Mr. Saurabh Mishra on the Board is desirable and would be beneficial to the
Company.

Except for Mr. Saurabh Mishra (DIN: 10153793), being an appointee, none of the Directors of
the Company either directly or through their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested,
whether financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

The Directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution set out in item No. 03 of the Notice for
approval by the members.

ITEM NO. 04

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), read with the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”), the Company is required
to obtain consent of the Board of Directors and prior approval of the Members by way of ordinary

resolution in case certain transactions with related parties exceeds such sum as is specified in
the said Rules.

For this purpose, a transaction is considered material, if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with the previous transaction(s) during a financial year, 10% or
more of the turnover of the Company, as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company. All the Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company are on an arm's

length basis and in the ordinary course of business, and approval of the Board is obtained,
wherever required.

The Company has existing arrangements with the related parties which are in the ordinary
course of business and on an arm’s length basis. However, the estimated value of the
transaction (existing and proposed) would exceed 10% of the turnover of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023. Thus, these transactions would require the approval of the
Members by way of Ordinary Resolution. Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited, Thailand,
is “Related Party” as per definition under Section 2(76) of the Act.

Approval is sought to enable the Board for entering into contracts/arrangements/
agreements/transactions (including any modifications, alterations, amendments, or renewal
thereto) with the aforesaid party subject to the limits mentioned in the table below:
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N;r::;s)a:;t::tsreela‘:fed Particulars/Nature Duration of Material terms of the Z:t::;)l:r Amount
Sl Relationship/Name of of Contracts/ the Contracts/ | Contracts/Arrangements/ by the paid as
No. Director o rII)(MP who Arrangements/ Arrangements/ | Transactions including B oyard if advances
is related, if any Transactions Transactions | the monetary value if any any if any
1 | Indorama Ventures
Public Company
Limited, Thailand, Commission on .
Relative, None of the SBLC value GBne| 20018 Bie GEChess il
Director or KMP is
related into the
transaction

The Directors consider that the existing arrangement with the related party is in the ordinary
course of business and on an arm’s length basis.

None of the Directors of the Company either directly or through their relatives is, in any way,
concerned or interested, whether financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

The Directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution set out in Item No. 04 of the Notice for
approval by the members.

By Order of the Board

\:_ A
Place: Gurugram Umesh Kun'(nlar Agrawal
Date: May 12, 2023 Director (DIN: 08502514)
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ANNEXURE | TO THE NOTICE

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the second Annual General
Meeting, in pursuance of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2).

ITEM NO. 02

Mr. M. N. Sudhindra Rao, Non-Executive Director

Name of Director Mr. M. N. Sudhindra Rao

Father's Name Shri Maganti Laxman Narayana Rao

Directors Identification Number (DIN) | 01820347

Age and Date of Birth 66, May 22, 1957

Date of First Appointment July 5, 2021

Experience/Expertise in the specific He is a Science Graduate and member of the Institute
functional area of Chartered Accountants and has over 40 years of rich
experience in key positions in various organizations of
repute like Century Enka, Global Wind Power Limited,
Reliance ADAG, and Polygenta Technologies Limited.

Qualification Science Graduate and Chartered Accountant.

Directorship/Chairman/CEO held in | e Indorama Yarns Private Limited - Director:

other Companies e Indorama Sustainable Polymers (India) Private
Limited - Director;

¢ Indorama Sustainable Polyester Yarns Private

Limited - Director;

Arjit Mercantile Private Limited - Director;

N G G T Infotek Private Limited - Director;

Everest Kanto Cylinder Limited - Director; and

Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited - CEO

Chairman/Member of the Committee | Nil
of the Board of Directors of the
Company, i.e., Indorama Ventures
Yarns Private Limited.

Chairman/Member of the Committee | Nil
of the Board of Directors of other
Company in which he is Director

INDORAMA VENTURES YARNS PRIVATE LIMITED
Corp. Office: Plot No. 53 & 54, Delhi Press Building, Phase-IV, Udyog Vihar, Gurugram-122015, Haryana, India | Tel: 0124-4997000
Regd. Office: The Metropolitan, 61 Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051, Maharashtra, India
CIN: U17299MH2021PTC363295 | E-mail: info@ivyarn.com | Website : www.indoramaindia.com




INDO RAMA

Shareholding (including shareholding
as a beneficial owner) in Indorama
Ventures Yarns Private Limited.

Holding 1 (one) equity shares as Nominee of Indo
Rama Synthetics (India) Limited.

For other person as beneficial basis : Nil

No. of Board Meeting attended during
the financial year 2022-23

7 (Seven)

Relationship of the Director, Manager,
and other KMP of the Company

None

Listed entities from which the director
has resigned in the past 3 years

Nil

Terms and conditions of appointment/
re-appointment

Non-Executive Director liable to retire by rotation.

Details of Remuneration last drawn
(2022-23)

Nil

ITEM NO. 03

Mr. Saurabh Mishra, Non-Executive Director

Name of Director

Mr. Saurabh Mishra

Father's Name

Shri Radha Kant Mishra

Directors Identification Number (DIN)

10153793

Age and Date of Birth

55, September 23, 1967

Date of First Appointment

May 12, 2023

Experience/Expertise in the specific
functional area

|

Mr. Saurabh Mishra is CFO-LifeStyle based out of
Indonesia, having professional experience for more
than 30 years in the field of Finance and Commerce
working for multinational conglomerate Indorama
Ventures Public Company Limited, which is engaged in
the manufacturing of materials for textiles, packaging,
and chemical industries globally.

Mr. Mishra had Training Programs Director with
Certification Program (DCP), Member No. GM9629
since 02/2019, from Thai Institute of Directors (IOD),
Thailand.
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Qualification e Commerce Graduate (Hons) from Meerut University
of India;

¢ Chartered Accountant from The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India; and

e Bachelor of Law from Meerut University of India.

Directorship/Chairman/CEQ held in| ¢ PT Indorama Polychem Indonesia - President

other Companies Director;
e PT Indorama Ventures Indonesia - President
Director;
e PT Indorama Petrochemicals - President Director;
e PT Indorama Polypet Indonesia - President
Director;

e PT Indorama Polyester Industries Indonesia -
President Director;

e PT Indorama Ventures Sustainable Solutions
Indonesia.

Chairman/Member of the Committee | Nil
of the Board of Directors of the
Company, i.e., Indorama Ventures
Yarns Private Limited.

Chairman/Member of the Committee | Nil
of the Board of Directors of other
Company in which he is Director

Shareholding (including shareholding | Own : Nil

as a beneficial owner) in Indorama | For other person as beneficial basis : Nil
Ventures Yarns Private Limited.

No. of Board Meeting attended during | Not Applicable
the financial year 2022-23

Relationship of the Director, Manager, | None
and other KMP of the Company

Listed entities from which the director | Nil
has resigned in the past 3 years

Terms and conditions of appointment/ | Non-Executive Director liable to retire by rotation.
re-appointment

Details of Remuneration last drawn | Not Applicable
(2022-23)
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BOARD’S REPORT
To

The Members,

Your directors have the pleasure of presenting the Second Annual Report of your Company
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The highlights of your Company’s financial performance, for the financial year ended March 31,
2023, are summarized below:
(Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

) . Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

Total Revenue 873.70 0.55
Expenditure 895.56 45.94
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional,

extraordinary items and tax (45.13) (45.40)
Tax Expenses/(Credit) - -
Profit/(Loss) After Tax for the year (45.13) (45.40)

RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS
Your Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Polyester Yarn.

During the year under review, your Company has earned revenue from operations of ¥873.70
Lakhs as against 20.55 of previous year. Further, other income on account of Interest Income is
¥2.19 Lakhs as against 0.55 Lakhs in the previous year. Your Company has posted a Net Loss
after Tax of ¥45.13 Lakhs as against a Net Loss after Tax of ¥45.40 Lakhs in the previous year.

HOLDING SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
(CIN: L17124MH1986PLC166615).

During the year under review, your Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures, or
associate companies.
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business.

FUTURE GROWTH PLAN OF THE COMPANY

Your Company is in the process of setting its 39 DTY Machines towards addition of balancing
equipment for value addition. The commercial production for 39 DTY machines is being planned
in phases between June and October 2023.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes or commitments which affect the financial position of your

Company, which occurred between the end of the financial year, i.e., March 31, 2023, and the
date of this Report.

DIVIDEND

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No amount was transferred to the reserves during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Capital of your Company as on March 31, 2023 was %10,00,00,000/- (Indian
Rupees Ten Crore only) divided into 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each and issued,
subscribed, and paid-up share capital of your Company as on March 31, 2023, was

¥7,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Crore only) divided into 70,00,000 Equity Shares of Z10/-
each.

During the year under review, the Authorized Capital of your Company has been increased by
¥5,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Crore only) divided into 50,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/-
each in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on September 14, 2022 and the issued,
subscribed, and paid-up share capital of your Company has been increased by aggregating

%4,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Four Crore only) divided into 40,00,000 Equity Shares of Z10/-
each as follows:

Date of Allotment | Method of Issuance | No. of Equity | Face Value | Total Amount
Shares per Share
August 30, 2022 Right Issue to exiting 20,00,000 Z10/- %2,00,00,000/-
Equity Sharehodlers
December 23, 2022 | Right Issue to existing 20,00,000 ¥10/- Z2.00,00,000/-
Equity Shareholders
Total 40,00,000 ¥4,00,00,000/-
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
As on March 31, 2023, the Board was having 4 (four) directors:

i)  Mr. M.N. Sudhindra Rao (DIN: 01820347)

ii) Mr. Umesh Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 08502514)

iii) Mr. Hemant Balkrishna Bal (DIN: 08818797); and
iv) Mr. Sudesh Manohar Sheth (DIN: 09227017).

Mr. Shishir Vijay Pimplikar (DIN: 09261076), Director of your Company has resigned from the
directorship of your Company, with effect from October 28, 2022, which was taken on record.

Mr. Saurabh Mishra (DIN: 10153793) was appointed as an Additional Director of your

Company with effect from May 12, 2023, to hold office up to the date of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and
your Company'’s Articles of Association, Mr. M. N. Sudhindra Rao, (DIN: 01820347), Director of

your Company is liable to retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible offers
himself for re-appointment.

An appropriate resolution for the re-appointment of Mr. M. N. Sudhindra Rao is being moved at
the ensuing AGM, which the Board of Directors recommends for your approval.

Further, the provisions of Section 203 of the Act relating to the appointment of Key Managerial
Personnel are not applicable to your Company.

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified under Section 164(2) (a) & (b) of the Act.
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2022-23, 7 (Seven) Meetings of the Board were held on April 27, 2022,

July 29, 2022, August 18, 2022, October 28, 2022, November 25, 2022, January 31, 2023, and
February 8, 2023.

The gap between any two Board Meetings was less than One Hundred and Twenty (120) days.

The name of the Board Members and their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the
financial year 2022-23 are as under:

Name of Directors Number of Board Meetings Attended/ Total Meetings
Mr. M. N. Sudhindra Rao 6/7
Mr. Hemant Balkrishna Bal 717
Mr. Sudesh Manohar Sheth 717
Mr. Umesh Kumar Agrawal 717
Mr. Shishir Vijay Pimplikar 2/3
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act with regard to the statements on declaration given by
the Independent Director are not applicable to your Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177 of the Act read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of
the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013, are not applicable to your Company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The provisions of Section 178(1) of the Act relating to the constitution of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, are not applicable to your Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Sections 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2023, is
available on your Company’s website, https://www.indoramaindia.com/subsidiary-ivyarn.php.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, your
Company at its first AGM appointed, M/s Walker Chandiok & Co., LLP (Firm Registration No.
001076N/N500013) as Statutory Auditors of your Company for an initial term of five consecutive
years, i.e., from the conclusion of the first AGM of your Company held on July 21, 2022, until the
conclusion of Sixth AGM of your Company to be held in the year 2027. The Statutory Auditors
have confirmed they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of your Company.

The Report given by M/s Walker Chandiok & Co., LLP on the Financial Statements of your
Company, for the financial year 2022-23, is part of the Annual Report. The notes on financial
statements referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not call for further
comments. The observations of the Auditors are explained wherever necessary in the

appropriate Notes on Accounts. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualifications,
reservations, or adverse remarks.

During the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of
the Act, therefore no details are required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the Act.

COST AUDITORS

During the year under review, Cost Audit was not applicable to your Company.
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INTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year under review, Internal Audit was not applicable to your Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

During the year under review, the Secretarial Audit was not applicable to your Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company
has framed a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigii Mechanism for Directors, Employees, and
Stakeholders for reporting genuine concerns about any instance of any irregularity, unethical
practice, and/or misconduct. The Vigil Mechanism provides adequate safeguards against the

victimization of Directors/Employees or any other person who avails themselves of the
mechanism.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the year under review, the provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility are not
applicable to your Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION, AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has a Policy on “Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace” and
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under

“The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013,

Your Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee under Section 4 of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013. During
the year no complaint was received.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company continuously monitors business and operational risks. At present, there are no
risks identified by the Board of Directors which may threaten the existence of your Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial control commensurate with the size of
your Company and the nature of its business.

DEPOSITS

During the year, your Company did not invite or accept any deposits from the public under
Section 76 of the Act.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

The particulars relating to the conservation of energy and technology absorption are not

applicable to your Company. However, efforts are being made to conserve and optimize the use
of energy, wherever possible.

The foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the period under review was Nil.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability,
confirm that:

() in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, for the year ended March 31, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed and there are no material departures;

(i) the accounting policies selected and applied are consistent and the judgments and
estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the Company at the end of the year and of the loss of the Company for that
period;

(i) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) the Annual Accounts, during the year ended March 31, 2023, have been prepared on a
going concern basis;

(v) the internal financial controls laid down by the Board and being followed by the Company,
are adequate and were operating effectively;

(vi) the proper systems, devised by Directors to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws, were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, AND/OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not given any loan and/or guarantee or

provided security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person or made any
investment under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by your Company that may
have potential conflict with the interest of your Company. Related Party Transactions that were

entered into during the year under review, were on an arm’'s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of business.
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The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
Section 188 of the Act entered by your Company, during the financial year ended March 31,
2023, are annexed hereto, in prescribed Form AOC-2, and forms part of this report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED INFORMATION

There was no employee in respect of whom information is required to be given pursuant to Rule

5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
as amended up to date.

INSURANCE

All the properties including buildings, plants & machinery and stocks have adequately been
insured.

BUY-BACK OF SECURITIES

During the year under review, your Company has not bought back any of its securities.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS/ HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company maintained healthy, cordial, and harmonious industrial relations at all levels
during the year under review. Your Company firmly believes that a dedicated workforce
constitutes the primary source of sustainable competitive advantage. Accordingly, human
resource development continues to receive focused attention. Your directors wish to place on

record their appreciation for the dedicated and commendable services rendered by the staff and
workforce of your Company.

GENERAL

Your directors state that no disclosures or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

a) Your Company had not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend or
voting or otherwise;

b) Your Company had not issued any shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of
your Company under any scheme;

c) No significant or material order was passed by any Regulator/ Court/ Tribunal which impacts
the going concern status of your Company or its future operations.

d) Your Company has not resorted to any buy back of its Equity Shares during the year under
review;

e) No fraud has been reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 143;
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f) The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof - Not Applicable; and

g) The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of
the financial year- Not Applicable

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continuous support extended by
shareholders, customers, government authorities and bankers, and lenders for their continued
support and faith reposed in your Company.

By Order of the Board

A

| W o \}
Place: Gurugram . N. Sudhindra Rao Umesh Kumar Agrawal
Date: May 12, 2023 Director (DIN: 01820347) Director (DIN: 08502514)
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
21st Floor, DLF Square
Jacaranda Marg, DULF Phase 1|
Gurugram - 122 002

Indid

T +D1 124 462 8089
F +31 124 462 8001

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2023, and its loss (inciuding other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI')
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private
Limited, on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directors’ report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible

——
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private
Limited, on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern;

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of

the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmaodified opinion; and

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private
Limited, on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as at
31 March 2023;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023.;

. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

note 31(e) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 31(f) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties'), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

— ok

Tarun Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 507892
UDIN: 23507892BGXQVF4104

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

() The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right of
use assets or investment property and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not
applicable to the Company.

(ii) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the vyear.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/business activity.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(@) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
T, from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report

‘%hat the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
‘Eﬂ?iitution or government or any government authority.

-
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year

ended

31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(c) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised

(d)

(e)

x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)(@)

T
COANDI

Ko
G
e

by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Act Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

‘N,QCL 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not

pplicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 45.13 lakhs and Rs 45.40 lakhs respectively

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the
Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the
criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

— ou

Tarun Gupta

Partner
Membe

UDIN: 23507892BGXQVF4104

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

rship No.: 507892
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right of
use assets or investment property and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not
applicable to the Company.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the vyear.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received

ROIBRS from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report

7~ that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
\~\institution or government or any government authority.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (&) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xiiy ~ The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiiiy  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and
consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Act Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash fransactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
_——__Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xxi)

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to Rs. 45.13 akhs and Rs 45.40 lakhs respectively

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the
Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the
criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause
3(xx} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

o

Tarun Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 507892
UDIN: 23507892BGXQVF4104

Place: Gurugram

Date: 12 May 2023
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama
Ventures Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited
(‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’) prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Indorama
Ventures Yarns Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(cont’d)

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonablc assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

/@’W
Tarun Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 507892
UDIN: 23507892BGXQVF4104

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023
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Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited
CIN: U17299MH2021PTC363295

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ Inkhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Notes Asat S at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
(2) Capital work-in-progress 2 8,548.43 59.92
(b) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 3 1.53 0.01
(c) Non-current tax assets (net) 4 522 0.06
(d) Other non-current assets 5 547.89 519.34
Total non-current assets 9,103.07 579.33
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 6 29.79 214.42
(ii) Other financial assets 3 0.39 -
(b) Other current assets 7 860.40 23.61
Total current assets 890.58 238.03
Total assets 9,993.65 817.36
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 8 700.00 300.00
(b) Other equity 9 (90.53) (45.40)
Total equity 609.47 254.60
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10 8,712.07 517.24
(b) Provisions 11 5.44 -
Total non-current liabilities 8,717.51 517.24
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(2) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and - -
(b) total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 12 34.94 12.27
(ii) Other financial liabilities 13 612.31 32,55
(b) Other current liabilities 14 19.27 0.70
(c) Provisions 11 0.15 -
Total current liabilities 666.67 45.52
Total equity and liabilities 9,993.65 817.36
Notes 1 to 33 forms an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
\ W W ¥
Tarun Gupta M N Sudhindra Rao Umesl Kumar Agrawal
Partmer Director Director

Membership No.: 507892

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

DIN: 01820347

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

DIN: 08502514




Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited

CIN: U17299MH2021PTC363295

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless stated ntherwise)

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

. For the year ended For the period ended
Particulars Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Income
Revenue from operations 15 871.51 -
Other income 16 2.19 0.55
Total income 873.70 0.55
I Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 17 863.42 -
Employee benefits expense (refer note 29) - -
Other expenses 18 32.14 45.94
Expenses before finance costs and foreign exchange fluctuation 895.56 45.94
Loss before finance costs and foreign exchange fluctuation (21.86) (45.39)
Finance costs 19 23.49 0,01
Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (0.22) -
Total expenses 918.83 45.95
11 Loss before tax [I-I1] (45.13) (45.40)
IV Tax expense :
Current tax credit - -
Deferred tax credit - =
Total tax expenses - -
Vv Loss for the year [IX[-IV] (45.13) (45.40)
VI Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit liability
Less: Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit B )
liability
Other comprehensive income for the year - =
VII Total comprehensive income for the year (45.13) (45.40)
VIII Earnings per equity share [nominal value of equity share ¥ 10]
Basic and diluted 20 (0.96) (7.74)
Notes 1 to 33 forms an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
/ \(F v
\W < Ten o r?f
Tarun Gupta N Sudhindra Rao Urneff: Kumar Agra'wal
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 507892 DIN: 01820347 DIN: 08502514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

' \Place: Gurugram
'S'\bme: 12 May 2023
=



Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited

CIN: U17299MH2021PTC363295

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the period ended
31 March 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax
Add : Adjustment for non-cash and non-operating items
Finance costs
Interest income
Operating (loss) before working capital changes
Adjustments for movement in:
Changes in other financial assets and loans
Changes in other assets
Changes in trade payables
Changes in provisions
Changes in other financial liabilities
Changes in other liabilities
Cash used in operating activities
Income tax paid [net]
Net cash used in operating activities [A]

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [including capital work-in-
progress, capital advances and creditors for capital goods]
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities [B]

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Proceeds from issue of share capital
Finance costs paid
Net cash generated from financing activities [C]

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Closing cash and cash equivalents (refer note 6)

Notes:

(45.13) (45.40)
23.49 0.01
(2.19) =
(23.83) (45.40)
1.91) =
(836.79) (23.61)
22.66 12.27
5.59 -
527 =
18.57 0.70
(810.44) (56.03)
(5.17) (0.06)
(815.61) (56.09)
(7,945.47) (529.28)
2.19 -
(7,943.28) (529.28)
8,194.83 517.24
400.00 300.00
20.57) (17.45)
8,574.26 799.79
(184.63) 214.42
214.42 -
29.79 214.42

1. The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 (Ind AS-7) on "Statements of Cash

2. Negative figures have been shown in brackets.

3. Refer note 10 for reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities in accordance with Ind AS-7.

Notes 1 to 33 forms an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Cash flows referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

W
Tarun Gupta

Partner
Membership No.: 507892

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited

Mo

M N Sudhindra Rao
Director
DIN: 01820347

Kumar Agrawal
Director
DIN: 08502514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

Place: Gurugram
\ Date: 12 May 2023




Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited

CIN: U17299MH2021PTC363295

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity share capital

Changes in equity share
Balance as at capital during the Balance as at
Particulars 1 April 2022 period 31 March 2023
Equity share capital 300.00 400.00 700.00
Changes in equity share
Balance as at capital during the Balance as at
Particulars 1 April 2021 period 31 March 2022
Equity share capital - 300.00 300.00
B. Other equity
Attributable to the equity holders
Retained earnings
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the period (45.40) -
Loss during the year/ period (45.13) (45.40)
Balance at the end of the year (90.53) (45.40)

Notes 1 to 33 forms an integral part of these financial stalemenls
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited

4
4 H oW L
M N Sudhindra Rao
Director
DIN Number: 01820347

,(09 Wi
Tarun Gupta
Partner

Membership No: 507892

Ume}
Director

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

+ -

|

Kumar Agrawal
DIN Number: 08502514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023



Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period
ended 31 March 2023

(i) Corporate information

Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’ or ‘IVYPL’) is a Private
Company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at The Metropolitan, 6th Floor, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in trading of polyester yarn and is in process of setting up project to
manufacture draw textured yarn (DTY).

(ii) Basis of preparation and presentation

These financial statements have been preparcd in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. All amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, unless otherwise indicated.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost.

(iii) Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

a. Ind AS 103 Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not
significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The amendment did not have any material impact on
financial statements of the Company.

b. Ind AS 16 Proceeds before intended use

The amendment specify that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use.
The amendment did not have any material impact on financial statements of the Company.

c. Ind AS 37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments specify that that the “cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to
the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the amendment did not have any material impact
on financial statements of the Company.

d. Ind AS 109 Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in
assessing whether to-dere
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(iv) Significant accounting policies
a. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that are reported and disclosed in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Thesc cstimates and judgment are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events, historical
experience, actions that the Company may undertake in the future and on various other estimates and
Judgments that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Accounting estimates could change
from period to period. Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements
in applying accounting policies that have most significant effect of the amounts recognized in the financial
statements is includes Note 11 and 22 measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

b. Going concern

Going concern basis of accounting used for preparation of the accompanying financial statements is
appropriate with no material uncertainty.

¢. Current/non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature
of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

1) It is expected to be realised in, or is intended to be sold or consumed in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle;

2) Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

3) Itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

4) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as
non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
1) It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

2) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

3) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

4) —
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Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified
as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use. The Company identifies and determines separate useful lives for each major
component of the property, plant and equipment, if they have a useful life that is materially different from
that of the asset as a whole.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is recorded as capital work-in-
progress before such date. Cost of construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment
and that are attributable to construction activity in general and can be allocated to specific property, plant and
equipment are included in capital work-in-progress.

Expenditure against the assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Impairment
(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- a breach of contract such as a default in payment within the due date;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

- itis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties;

- the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are
measured at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in loss allowance computed using ECL
model, are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information. The Company considers a financial asset to be in
default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any) is held.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent
cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest

group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGU (or the asset).
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recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU (or
group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at
each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Invenlories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Stock-in-trade: The cost of inventories is calculated on weighted average basis, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and
condition. Traded goods and other supplies held for use in trading are not written down below cost except in
cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished goods will exceed
their net realisable value.

Employee benefits
i. Short-term employee benefits

Shori-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term
cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

iil. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company
makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in
Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.

iii. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit
obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India.

Remeasurements of’
recognised in O(;fl;"'-
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liability or the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

iv. Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since, the compensated
absences do not fall due wholly within twclve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end
of such period, the benefit is classified as a other long-term employee benefit. The Company records an
obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

Revenue
i. Sale of goods

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the
customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products to customers being when the goods are
shipped to the customers or dispatched from warehouse basis the contract with customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services,
the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective
control over or managerial involvement with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Where the payment extends beyond normal credit period, interest is recovered separately.

ii. Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
interest rate applicable.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to thergxtent.that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
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Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current financial liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach
of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
of another entity. Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A financial instrument is measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction
costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) which are measured initially at fair
value.

However, trade receivables are initially measured at transaction price (as defined in Ind AS 115, Revenue
from Contract with Customers) unless those contain a significant financing component determined in
accordance with Ind AS 115.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.

For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). On initial recognition,
the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be

measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.
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Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets:

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it

would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. Financial assets at
amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest income rewised
in Statement of Profit and Loss. o5 Yar
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Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

FVTPL .| including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest

income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss.

iv. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a

net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Measurement of fair values

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and
assumptlons that are based on market condltlons and risks emstmg at each reporting date. All methods of
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Assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:

- Market approach — Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities.

- Income approach — Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its present value using
the discounting methodology.

- Cost approach — Replacement cost method.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the

valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable -
inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cheques on hand, cash on hand, short
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amount
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Earnings per share

Basic earning per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential ordinary shares shall be treated as dilutive when, and only when, their conversion to ordinary shares
would decrease earnings per share or increase loss per share from continuing operations.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future obligation at
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money risks specific to hablllty
They are not discounted >-they are assessed as current in nature. Provisions are not made for f
operating losses. ~
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly with in the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is
either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made. Therefore, in order to determine the amount to be recognised as a liability or to be disclosed
as a contingent liability, in each case, is inherently subjective, and needs careful evaluation and judgement to
be applied by the management. In case of provision for litigations, the judgements involved are with respect
to the potential exposure of each litigation and the likelihood and/or timing of cash outflows from the
Company, and requires interpretation of laws and past legal rulings.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities if any that are measured based on historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

All exchange differences are dealt with in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty,
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be u /{% existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available/ Therefore;\in case of a history of recent losses, the Company reco

/
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deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be
realised.

The Company’s ability to recover the deferred tax assets is assessed by the management at the close of each
financial year which depends upon the forecasts of the future results and taxable profits that Company
expects to earn within the period by which such brought forward losses may be adjusted against the taxable
profits as governed by the Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle deferred tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

. Measurement of loss before finance costs and foreign exchange fluctuation

The Company have elected to present loss before finance costs, and foreign exchange fluctuation as a
separate line item on the face of the statement of Profit and Loss.

In the measurement, the Company includes interest income but does not include finance costs, foreign
exchange fluctuation and tax expense.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Company’s Chairman and Managing Director assesses the financial
performance and position of the Company, and makes strategic decision and has been identified as the chief
operating decision maker. The Company’s business activity is organised and managed separately according
to the nature of the products, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
products and serves different market. The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on
principal business activities carried on by the Company. As per Indian Accounting Standard 108, Operating
Segments, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company
operates in one reportable business segment i.e., manufacturing and trading of Polyester goods. The
geographical information analyses the Company’s revenue and trade receivables from such revenue in India
and other countries.

Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st,
2022, as below:
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identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not
significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have
any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use.
Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not
expect the amendments to have any impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to
the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the 10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have
any significant impact on its financial statements.

The Company is currently eval
standards on its financial statén)
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Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited
CIN: U17299MH2021PTC363295

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in X lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

2. Capital work-in-progress

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 59.92 -
Additions during the year 8,488.51 59.92
Balance as at end of the year 8,548.43 59.92
Notes
1. Captial work-in-progress includes property, plant and equipment under construction, installation and cost of asset not ready for use as at year end.
2. The costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year, refer note 29.
(a) Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
Amount in capital work-in-progress for a period of
Projects in progress Less than 1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
year years
31 March 2023 8,488.51 59.92 - - 8,548.43
31 March 2022 59.92 = - - 59.92

(b) There are no such project under capital work in progress, whosc completion is overduc or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as of 31 March 2023

and 31 March 22

3. Other financial assets

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Security deposits 1.53 - - 0.01
Advance to employees - = 0.39 -
Total 1.53 - 0.39 0.01
4. Non current tax assets
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance tax 5.22 0.06
Total 5.22 0.06
5. Other non current assets
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital advances 547.89 519.34
Total 547.89 519.34
6. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks 29.79 14.42
Deposits with original maturity less than three months - 200.00
Total 29.79 214.42
7. Other current assets
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance with government authorities 847.17 7.98
Prepaid expenses 13.23 15.63
Total 860.40 23.61

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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8. Equity share capital

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised
10,000,000 (31 March 2022: 5,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000.00 500.00
1,000.00 500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Balance at the beginning of the year 300.00 -
Add: Issued during the year 400.00 300.00
Balance at the end of the year 700.00 300.00
7,000,000 (31 March 2022 : 3,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid -up
Notes:
i) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 30,00,000 300.00 - -
Add: Issued during the year 40,00,000 400.00 30,00,000 300.00
Balance at the end of the year 70,00,000 700.00 30,00,000 300.00

ii) The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of

capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining asscts of thc Company, aftcr distribution of all preferential amounts.

The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

iii) Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% and shares held by holding Company are as under:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of % of
shares shareholding Number of shares % of shareholding
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited [holding Company]* 70,00,000 100.00% 30,00,000 100.00%
70.00,000 100.00% 30,00,000 100.00%
* including nominee shareholders
(iv) Shareholding of promoter is as follows:
Shares held by promoter
P As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change during
romoter Name
Number of % of  Number of % of the year
shares shareholding shares shareholding
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited [Holding Company] 70,00,000 100.00% 30,00,000 100.00% -
70,00,000 100.00% 30,00,000 100.00% -

Promoter Name

Shares held by promoter

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

% Change during

Number of % of Number of % of the year

shares shareholding shares shareholding
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited [Holding Company] 30,00,000 100.00% - - 100.00%
30,00,000 100.00% - - 100.00%

v) The Company has not issued any share pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash in the current year. The Company has not issued any bonus
shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the preceeding two years.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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9. Other cquity

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

a. Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year (45.40) -
Loss during the year (45.13) (45.40)
Balance at the end of the year (90.53) (45.40)
Nature of reserves
Retained earnings
Retained earnings refer to the net loss retained by the Company for its core business activities.
10. Borrowings

As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Secured loan
Term loan from banks

Rupee loans 8,212.07 517.24
Unsecured loan

from holding company 500.00 -
Total 8,712.07 517.24

(a) Details of rate of interest, terms of repayment and security for long-term loans from banks:
Secured term loan from banks

X 8,212.07 lakhs (31 March 2022 : ¥ 517.24 lakhs) are secured by Stand By Letter of Credit (SBLC) by promotor group company of Holding Company,
Repayable in quarterly installments of I 307.95 lakhs each in FY 2024-2025, 513.25 lakhs each in FY 2025-2026, ¥ 615.91 lakhs each in FY 2026-2027 and in FY

2027-2028 respectively , rate of interest range from 6.25% p.a to 9.30% p.a ( 31 March 2022 6.25% to 6.46%)

Unsecured loan

Rate of As at

Name of related party Nature of loan Repayment terms

As at

interest 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
omxli P d, ble with in 1 from dat
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited ~ Non current 9.00% Dot g S 500.00 -
of agreement
Total - 500.00 -

The purpose of the loan is for meeting the funding requirements for ongoing project capex execution support.

(b) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of interest during the current financial year. There are no financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and

borrowings applicable in the current year.

(c) Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

As at

Particulars 31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Opening balance

Non current borrowings 517.24
Cash flows

Proceeds from non current borrowings 8,194.83
Closing

Non current borrowings 8,712.07

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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11.Provisions

Non-current

Current

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity [refer note 22] 1.50 - 0.01 -
Provision for compensated absences [refer note 22] 3.94 - 0.14 -
Total 5.44 - 0.15 -
12. Trade payables
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises [refer note 23]

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 34.94 12.27
Total 34.94 12.27
Trade payables ageing schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
31 March 2023 Not due Less th::a}_ 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade payables

Outstanding due to micro enterprises ) : _ i

and small enterprises

Others 34.94 - - - - 34.94
Total 34.94 - - - - 34.94

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
31 March 2022 ss (h
re Not due Less lh::a}_ 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade payables

Outstanding due to micro enterprises )

and small enterprises i ) ) ) -

Others - 12.27 - - - 12.27
Total - 12.27 - - - 12.27
There are no unbilled and disputed trade payables, hence the same is not dislcosed in the ageing schedule.

13. Other financial liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 3.01 0.09
Creditor towards property, plant and equipments* 604.02 32.46
Payable to employees 5.15 -
Others 0.13 -
Total 612.31 32.55
* Includes due towards MSME vendors Rs 302.81 lakhs (31 march 2022: nil)
14. Other current liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advances from customers 2.65 =
Statutory dues 16.62

Total

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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15. Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the period ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Sale of products

Traded goods 871.51 -

Total 871.51 -
Notes:

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the
i) statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Gross sale of products 871.51 -

Less: Adjustment on account of discounts and price differences - -

871.51 -

ii) Contract balances

Advance from customers [refer note 14] 2.65 -

iii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

16. Other income

For the year ended For the period ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income from banks 2.19 0.55
Total 2.19 0.55

17. Purchases of stock-in-trade

For the year ended For the period ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Purchases of stock-in-trade 863.42 -
Total 863.42 -

18. Other expenses

For the year ended For the period ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Rates and taxes 5.86 0.01
Rent 0.22 -
Legal and professional charges 10.20 0.06
Auditor's remuneration

- for audit 2.00 1.00

- for other services 2.00 0.50

- for reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.12 -
Power and fuel 0.03 -
Repair & maintainence - 44.20
Brokerage & commission 0.06 -
Freight & forwarding charges 4.99 -
Contract labour 0.41 -
Miscellaneous expenses 6.25 0.16
Total 32.14 45.94

29.
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19. Finance costs

For the year ended For the period ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest
term loans 1.80 -
others 18.17 -
Other borrowing costs 3.52 0.01
Total 23.49 0.01

Note: The costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment has been capitalised during the year, refer nole
29.

20. Earning per share

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Net loss attributable to the equity shareholders (A) (45.13) (45.40)
b) Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year (absolute) 30,00,000 -
Total number of shares outstanding at the end of the year (absolute) 70,00,000 30,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares (B) (absolute) 47,15,068 5,86,301
Basic and diluted earning / (loss) per share (Rs.) (0.96) (7.74)
Nominal value of equity share (%) 10.00 10.00

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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21. Capital commitments

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Capital commitments - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 8,476.24 4.665.12

capital account and not provided for [net of capital advances]

22. Employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plan

An amount of  5.55 lakhs [31 March 2022 :  nil] for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of the Company’s contributions towards Provident
Fund, an amount of ¥ 0.03 lakhs [31 March 2022 : ¥ nil] for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of Company’s contributions towards Employee
State Insurance which are deposited with the government authorities and have been included under employee benefit expenses as part of pre-operative expenses
capitalised during the year.

b) Defined benefit plan

1) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5
years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Changes in present value obligation
Present value obligation as at the beginning of the year - =
Interest cost - -
Current service cost 1.51 -
Actuarial loss on obligation - -
Benefits paid - -
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 1.51 -
(ii) Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet
Current liabilities 0.01 -
Non-current liabilities 1.50 -
Net liability in the Balance Sheet 1.51 -

(iii) Amount capitalised as pre-operative expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 1.51 -
Interest cost =L =
Expense recognised in the capital work-in-progress 1.51 -
(iv) Re-measurements recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income (OCI)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Changes in financial assumptions s -

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income - -
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(v) Actuarial assumptions

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.35% -
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 4.50% -
Withdrawal rates
Upto 30 years 4.00% -
From 31 to 44 years 3.00% -
Above 44 years 1.00% -
Retirement age 58 years -
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality rate Mortality (2012-14) -
(modified) Ultimate

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are determined close to each year end
by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other
assumptions are based on management’s historical experience.

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Company to following risks:

Interest rate risk:
The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Salary inflation risk:
Expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these
decrements on the defined benefil obligation is nol straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is
important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to
a long service employee.

Funding
This is an unfunded benefit plan for qualifying employees.

(vi) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

The below sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same methods (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as
when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The sensitivity of the overall plan obligations to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact of the change in discount rate (p.a.)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 0.06 -
Impact due to increase of 0.50% (0.05) -

Impact of change in salary escalation rate (p.a.)
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 0.06 -
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (0.06) -
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(vii) Expected future cash flows

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The expected future cash flows in respect of gratuity (undiscounted) were as follows:
Year 1 0.01 -
Year 2 0.01 -
Year 3 0.02 -
Year 4 0.03 -
Year 5 0.80 -
Year 6 0.01 -
Year 6 onwards 0.63 -
Total 1.51 -

(viii) Expected contribution
The expected future employer contributions for defined benefit plan ¥ 4.68 lakhs as at 31 March 2023 [31 March 2022 :  nil ].

(ix) Weighted average duration
The weighted average duration for defined benefit plan is 17.64 years as at 31 March 2023 [31 March 2022 : nil].

¢) Other long-term employee benefits
An amount of ¥ 4.08 lakhs [31 March 2022 : ¥ nil] pertains to expense towards compensated absences.

23. Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises
On the basis of confirmations obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information available with the Company, the following are the details:

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Principal amount remaining unpaid 302.81 -
Interest due thereon 5.25 -
Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006, along with
the amount of the payment made to the suppliers and service providers beyond the 3,088.51 -
appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified 1.63 -
under MSMED Act, 2006
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end of the year 6.88 -

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.
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Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited

CIN: U17299MH2021PTC363295

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in X lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

24. Financial instruments - accounting classifications and fair value measurements

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sales.

A. Accounting classifications and fair values
The following tables shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying value Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 March 2023 FVTPL* FVOCH Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 29.79 29.79 =
Other financial assets - - 1.92 1.92 -
Total - - 31.71 31.71 -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 8,712.07 8,712.07 =
Trade payables - - 34.94 34.94 =
Other financial liabilities - - 612.31 612.31 =
Total - = 9,359.32 9,359.32 -
Carrying value Fair value hierarchy
As at31 March 2022 FVTPL* | FVOCH | _ Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 214.42 214.42 =
Other financial assets - - 0.01 0.01 -
Total = = 214.43 214.43 -
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 517.24 517.24 -
Trade payables - - 12.27 12.27 -
Other financial liabilities - - 32.55 32.55 -
Total - - 562.06 562.06 -

*Fair value through profit and loss

#Fair value through other comprehensive income

Notes:

1. The amortised cost of all financial assets and liablities approximate to the fair values on the respective reporting dates.
2. There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- credit risk

- liquidity risk

- market risk

(i) Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities.

(ii) Ciedit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputation. The Company uses activity-based costing to cost its products, which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements and
optimising its cash return on investments.

Details of undrawn facilities

- As at As at
Undrawn facility 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rupee term loan 10,760.00 6,082.76
Total 10,760.00 6,082.76

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted:

As at 31 March 2023 On demand Less than 1- § years More than Total
1 year 5 years
Non current borrowings* - - 8,712.07 - 8,712.07
Trade payables - 34.94 - - 34.94
Other financial liabilities - 612.31 - - 612.31
Total - 647.25 8,712.07 - 9,359.32
As at 31 March 2022 On demand Less than 1- 5 years More than Total
1 year 5 years
Non current borrowings* - - 362.07 155.17 517.24
Trade payables - 12.27 - - 12.27
Other financial liabilities - - 32.55 - 32.55
Total - 12.27 394.62 155.17 562.06

* excluding contractual interest payable at prevalent/agreed rate of interest.

(iv) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices — will affect the Company’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk gx

within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
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Interest rate risk

i) Liabilities

The Company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long term financing. The Company is exposed to changes in market interest
rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Variable rate borrowings 8,212.07 517.24
Total borrowings 8,212.07 517.24
Sensitivity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Interest sensitivity*

Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (31 March 2022: 100 basis points) 82.12 5.17
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points (31 March 2022: 100 basis points) (82.12) (5.17)

* Holding all other variables constant

ii) Assets
The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind
AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the deposits:

Particulars 31 March 2023] 31 March 2022
Fixed deposits - 200.00
Total deposits - 200.00

Commuodity price risk

Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuation in prices of crude oil. The Company has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the
risk arising from the volatility in commodity prices and freight costs. The Company’s commodity risk is managed centrally through well-established
control processes. In accordance with the risk management policy, the Company enters into various transactions using derivatives to hedge its exposure, as
and when required. The selling price of finished goods and purchases price of stock-in-trade fluctuates due to fluctuation in prices of crude oil and the
Company expects that the net impact of such fluctation would not be material.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company's exposure to currency risk (based on notional amounts) as reported to the management is as follows.
(i) Foreign currency risk exposure:

As at 31 March 2023
Currency Amount in Exchange rate Amount
Particulars foreign (in%) (in ¥ lacs)
currency (in
Trade payables USD 0.01 82.17 8.10
Exposure in respect of recognised liabilities 8.10

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR and USD against all other currencies at year end would have affected the measurement of
financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

As at 31 March 2023
Currency Increase in profit Decrease in
(changes in currency value by 5%)
USD 5% movement 0.41
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C. Capital management
The company's capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable reserves. The primary objective of the company's capital management is to
maximise shareholder value and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total liabilities 9,384.18 562.76
Less: cash and cash equivalents 29.79 214.42
Adjusted net debt 9,354.39 348.34
Total equity 609.47 254.60
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 15.35 1.37

T (This space has been intentionally left blank)




Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

25. Deferred tax
1. Effective tax rate reconciliation

For the period ended For the period ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loss before tax (45.13) (45.40)
Effective tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Current tax expenses/(income) on profit before tax at the effective income tax rate in india (11.36) (11.43)
Current tax losses against which no deferred tax assets was recognised (note 1) 11.36 1143
Tax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss - -
Note:

1. The company is in its initial phase of operations. The deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. No deferred tax asset has heen recognised by the Company in the absence of reasonable certainty of realisation of carried forward losscs to utilize
Lhese temporary differences.

26. Related party disclosure
a) Disclosure of related parties and relationship between the parties
Nature of relationship Name of related party
i) Key managerial personnel Mr. M N Sudhindra Rao [Director] appointed w.e.f. 5 July 2021
Mr. Umesh Kumar Agrawal [Director] appointed w.e.f. 14 December 2021
Mr.Hemant Balkrishna Bal [Director] appointed w.c.f. 5 July 2021
Mr, Sudesh Manohar Sheth [Director] appointed w.e.f. 5 July 2021
Mr. Shishir Vijay Pimplikar [Director] appointed w.e.f. 3 August 2021

ii) Holding Company Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited

iii) Ultimate controlling Company Indorama Netherlands BV [controlling company of holding Company]
Indorama Ventures Public Company Limuted |ultimate controlling company]*

iv) Fellow subsidiary Indorama Yarns Private Limited
Indorama Sustainable Polymers (India) Private Limited (w.c.f. 17 December 2022)
Indorama Sustainable Polyester Yarns Private Limited (w.e.f. 17 December 2022)

*The Company, its holding company and fellow subsidiary (herein referred to as Group) have availed credit lines with the support of the promotor Group Company to the
tune of USD 75 million [31 March 2022: USD 75 million] by way of Stand By Letter of Credir (SBLC) to meet any unforseen exingencies. Further, the Group has utlised
credit lines towards fund based and non fund based facilities with the support of the promater Group Company amounting to ¥ 48,689 lakhs [31 March 2022 43,961 |akhs]

b) Disclosure of transactions between the Company and its related parties

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i) Ultimate controlling Company
Purchases of goods and services
Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited 34.98 23.36
34.98 23.36
ii) Holding Company
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
a) Purchase of goods 971.00 -
b) Unsecured loans 500.00 -
c) Interest payable on unsecured loans 1.80 -
1,472.80 -

Note: The disclosure of transactions between the Company and its related parties presented above are inclusive of taxes, where applicable

¢) Disclosure of related parties year end balances

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables _
Indorama Ventures Public Company Limited 8.10 -
8.10 -
Unsecured loans
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited 500.00 -
500.00 -

Interest payable on unsecured loans
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited 1.80
. 1.80
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended 31 March 2023
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27. Segment information

Basis of segmentation:

The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company. The Board of Directors has been identified as
being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM') and evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of the various performance
indicators of the Company as a single unit. As per Indian Accounting Standard 108, Operating Segments, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, the Company operates in one reportable business segment i.e., trading of polyester goods.

Geographical information:
The Company does not have any revenue or trade receivable outside India.

28. Per transfer pricing legislation under section 92-92F of the Income-tax Act 1961, the Company is required to use certain specific methods in computing arm’s length
price of international transactions with associated enterprises and maintains adequate documentation in this respect. The legislations require that such information and
documentation to be contcmporancous in nature. The Company has appointed independent consultants for conducting the Transfer Pricing Study (o detennine whether the
transactions with associated cnterpriscs undertake during the financial year are on an "arm's length basis”. The Company is in the process of conducling a lransfer pricing
study for the current financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the due date as required by law. However, in the opinion of the management the
update would not have a material impact on these financial statements. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any adjustments for the transfer pricing
implications, if any

29. Capitalisation of expenditure incurred during construction period
The costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment are capitalised as under:

For the year For the year
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 59.92 -
Incurred during the year :
Employee benefit expenses* 106,84 -
Other expenses 206.28 4229
Finance costs** 237.70 17.63
Total 610.74 59.92
* includes Rs 5.58 [31 March 2022 nil] lakhs paid towards contribution to provident and other funds
*Finance cost is capitalised in accordance with Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs.
30. Ratio analysis and its elements
a) The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:
. Year ended Year ended .

Particular Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 Variance
(a) Current ratio ) 134 5.23 74% "
(b) Debt equity ratio (ii) 14.29 2.03 603% *
(c) Debt service coverage ratio (1ii) (0.90) (4.63) -100% *
(d) Retun on equity ratio (%) (iv) (10.45%) (35.66%) 1% *
(e) Inventory turnover ratio W) NA NA NA™
(f) Trade receivable turnover ratio (vi) NA NA NA "
(g) Trade payable turnover ratio (vii) 36.58 NA NA”
(h) Net capital tumover ratio (viii) 3.89 NA NA "
(i) Net profit ratio (%) (ix) (5.18%) NA NA~T
(j) Return on capital employed ratio (%) (x) (0.23%) (5.88%) 96% *
(k) Return on investment ratio (%) (x1) NA NA NA ™

Reasons for variance

*There were no balance in previous year, this leads to variance in ratios.

#The Company has started operations in previous period, and current year being the first year of full operations, this has lead to variance in ratios.
Notes :

(i) Current ratio = Current assets/ current liabilities

(i1) Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debt/ shareholders equity

(iii) Debt service coverage ratio = Eamings available for debt service/ debt service (refer point (A) below)

(iv) Return on Equity = Net Profits after taxes / average Shareholder’s Equity

(v) Inventory tumover ratio = Not applicable as there is nil inventory

(vi) Trade receivables tumover ratio = Not applicable as there are nil receivables

(vii) Trade payables turnover ratio = Net credit purchases (comprise of purchase of stock-in-trade) / average trade payable
(viii) Net capital turnover ratio = Net Sales/ Working Capital

(ix) Net Profit Ratio= Net profit/ Net sales

(x) Return on capital employed (ROCE)= Eaming before interest and taxes/ Capital Employed (refer point (B) below)
(xi) Return on investment is not applicable to the Company as no investment is held by the Company.

Other explanatory points
(A) Eaming for Debt Scrm«, =-Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustme

sale of PPE etc. TN

Debt service = ﬁ Lease pt ':rhiz\nts + Principal repayments

“Net Profit 111 ans reportegramount of “Profit / (loss) for the period” and it does not include items of other comprehensive income
(B) Capital [ 1 ed = Tangible n asv‘orth + Total debt + Deferred tax liability

=/
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31. Other statutory information

(a) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(b) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(c) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current period.

(e) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(f) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(g) The Company have not entered any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the current
period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
(h) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

32. The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 May 2023.

33. The Company has been incorporated on 05 July 2021. Accordingly, numbers included in the comparatives represent for the period from 05 July 2021 to 31 March 2022
and hence no comparable with the full year numbers of current year.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Indorama Ventures Yarns Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

~ o

{ Moo ,
Tarun Gupta Sudhindra Rao Umesh Kumar Agrawal
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 507892 DIN: 01820347 DIN: 08502514

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2023
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